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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

(Mark One)
X QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2008
Or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 000-26727

BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc.

(Exact name of registrant issuer as specified indtcharter)

Delaware 68-039782C

(State of other jurisdiction (I.R.S. Employer

of Incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
105 Digital Drive, Novato, California 94949
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number: (415) 506-6700

(Former name, former address and former fiscal yearif changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by SegtiB or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sslobrter period that the registrant was requirefildsuch reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days/es No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, poa-accelerated filer. See the definition of
“large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” atemaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of thecBange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filel
Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer J Smaller reporting company
(Do not check if a smaller reportii
company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgje Act.) Yes O No
Applicable only to issuers involved in bankruptapgeedings during the proceeding five years:

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant Had &ll documents and reports required to be fidgcbections 12, 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent toidtalilition of securities under a plan confirmedabgourt.
Yes O No O

Applicable only to corporate issuers:

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practicable date: 99,569,962 shares
common stock, par value $0.001, outstanding aslgf3IL, 2008.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Consolidated Financial Statements

BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except for share and per share data)

ASSETS

Current asset:

Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment
Accounts receivable, n
Advances to BioMarin/Genzyme LL
Inventory
Other current asse
Total current asse
Investment in BioMarin/Genzyme LL
Property, plant and equipment, |
Intangible assets, n
Goodwill
Restricted cas
Other asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Current portion of acquisition obligation, net a$abunt
Deferred revenu

Other current liabilitie:

Total current liabilities

Convertible deb
Long-term portion of acquisition obligation, net of dismt
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Stockholder equity:

(1)

Common stock, $0.001 par value: 250,000,000 sleargmrized at December 31, 2007 and June 30, .
97,114,159 and 99,208,948 shares issued and aditsgiaat December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2008

respectively
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It
Accumulated defici
Total stockholderl equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

December 31, 2007 balances were derived from tbgealiconsolidated financial statemet

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidataddial statements.

December 31

June 30,

2007 (1) 2008
(unaudited)
$ 228,34: $ 252,20¢
357,25 323,44¢
16,97¢ 52,15¢
2,08i 24¢
32,44" 61,80z
7,19¢ 11,95
644,29° 701,81«
44,88 31F
76,81¢ 105,19¢
9,59¢ 7,241
21,26: 21,26:
2,88¢ 5,00¢
15,53¢ 13,71
$ 815,27¢  $ 854,55
$ 49,90° $ 54,267
6,30¢ 5,81¢
5,32i 3,23¢
— 104
61,54: 63,42
497,37! 497,24
66,55 65,752
2,082 2,10¢
627,55: 628,52¢
97 99
794,91° 828,43
13¢ (575)
(607,42) (601,93)
187,72t 226,02
$ 815,27¢ $ 854,55!
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 dr2008
(In thousands, except for per share data, unauditéd

Revenues
Net product revenue
Collaborative agreement revent
Royalty and license revenu
Total revenue
Operating expense
Cost of sale:
Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrati
Amortization of acquired intangible ass
Total operating expens:
Income (loss) from operatiol
Equity in the income (loss) of BioMarin/Genzyme LI
Interest incom:
Interest expens
Income (loss) before income tax
Provision for income taxe
Net income (loss
Net income (loss) per share, ba
Net income (loss) per share, dilut
Weighted average common shares outstanding,

Weighted average common shares outstanding, di

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2007 2008 2007 2008
$20,94. $ 60,45¢ $39,27¢ $118,08:
3,50t 2,50¢ 7,652 4,97¢
4,43¢ 1,207 4,79 1,51¢
28,88¢ 64,17 51,72 124,57
4,557 9,59 8,67¢ 26,781
19,18¢ 23,75¢ 37,34¢ 41,38:
17,29t 25,20z 33,55¢ 48,87:
1,09¢ 1,09:¢ 2,18¢ 2,18t
42,13 59,64 81,75¢ 119,22:
(13,24") 4,53(  (30,03¢) 5,35(
6,55( (587)  12,71: (1,120
6,907 4,101 10,60: 9,75(
(3,720 (4,081 (6,055 (8,199
(3,510 3,96 (12,77) 5,787
354 152 38(C 291
$ (3,869 $ 3,81( $(13,15) $ 5,49¢
$ (00H) $ 004 $ (019 $ 0.0€
$ (00 $ 004 $ (019 $ 0.0f
95,79¢ 98,92 95,18( 98,28¢
95,79¢ 104,12( 95,18( 103,94¢

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidataddial statements.
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 and 2008
(In thousands, unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mshcused in operating activitie

Depreciation and amortizatic

Amortization of discount on sh-term investment
Imputed interest on acquisition obligati

Equity in the (income) loss of BioMarin/Genzyme LI
Stock-based compensatic

Loss on disposals and impairment of property andpegent

Unrealized foreign exchange gain on forward corsr
Changes in operating assets and liabilil
Accounts receivable, n
Advances to BioMarin/Genzyme LL
Inventory
Other current asse
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Other liabilities
Deferred revenu
Net cash used in operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipm
Maturities and sales of sh-term investment
Purchase of shc-term investment
Distributions from BioMarin/Genzyme LL!
Settlement of forward contrac
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from ESPP and exercise of stock op
Net proceeds from convertible debt offer
Repayment of acquisition obligatit
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivaler
Beginning of perioc
End of perioc

Supplemental cash flow disclosures

Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for income tax

Stock-based compensation capitalized into inven
Depreciation capitalized into inventa

Supplemental nor-cash investing and financing activities disclosure:

Conversion of convertible not:
Distribution of inventory resulting from the joimenture restructur

Deferred offering costs reclassified to additiopaid in capital as a result of convertible nc

Changes in accrued liabilities related to fixedets
Equipment acquired through capital le

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidataddial statements.

Six Months Ended June 30

2007 2008
$ (13,157 $ 5,49
6,351 8,32(
(5,370 (4,287)
2,282 2,20¢
(12,719 1,12(
8,50¢ 11,86¢

9 J—
(31) (100)
(1,23) (35,180
294 1,83¢
(5,639) (2,576)
(1,26¢) (4,756)
(1,09€) (1,627)
(1,53¢) 4,44:
1,19¢ 291
(3,457) (2,097)
(26,855  (15,02)
(6,829 (32,33
242,90 444,40
(420,53() (406,669
10,90( 16,67¢
(95) (1,215)
(173,65) 20,87(
3,51¢ 21,52
316,34( —
(3,500) (3,500)
316,35 18,02:
$11584¢ $ 23,86¢
$ 89,16: $ 228,34
$ 205,01 $ 252,20
$ 2156 $ 5,21(
152 102
96¢ 2,04
782 1,327
$ 51,49 $  12¢
— 26,78(
512 4
102 854
— 313
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(Unaudited)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS RISKS

BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. (the Company or BioM&) develops and commercializes innovative biophagutcals for serious
diseases and medical conditions. BioMarin receimadketing approval for Naglazyniégalsulfase) in the U.S. in May 2005, and in the .Enl
January 2006. Aldurazynfglaronidase) has been approved in the U.S and Bdlissmarketed by Genzyme Corporation (Genzymégchfe
January 2008, the Company restructured its relsltipnwith Genzyme as discussed in Note 4. In Deegr®0807, Kuvar? (sapropterin
dihydrochloride) received marketing approval in th&. The Company is incorporated in the stateelare.

Through June 30, 2008, the Company had accumulassds of approximately $601.9 million. Managenimiteves that the Company’s
cash, cash equivalents and short-term investmédisna 30, 2008 will be sufficient to meet the Camygs obligations for the foreseeable
future based on management’s current long-terrmbasiplans and assuming that the Company achisvesg-term goals. If the Company
elects to increase its spending on developmentrgnag significantly above current long-term plangwter into potential licenses and other
acquisitions of complementary technologies, progloctcompanies, the Company may need addition@iatalpntil the Company can generate
sufficient levels of cash from its operations, @@mpany expects to continue to finance net futasheeds primarily through its current cash,
cash equivalents and short-term investments, atftetextent necessary, through proceeds from equitgbt financings, loans and
collaborative agreements with corporate partner&dril 2007, the Company raised approximately $86illion in net proceeds from a puk
offering of senior subordinated convertible deb¢ ¢u2017.

The Company is subject to a number of risks, inclgdhe financial performance of Naglazyme, Kuvamg Aldurazyme; the potential
need for additional financings; its ability to sessfully commercialize its product candidatespiraved; the uncertainty of the Company’s
research and development efforts resulting in ssfoecommercial products; obtaining regulatoryrappl for such products; significant
competition from larger organizations; reliancetios proprietary technology of others; dependenckeyrpersonnel; uncertain patent
protection; dependence on corporate partners ditaboeoators; and possible restrictions on reimboneset, as well as other changes in the
health care industry.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of Presentation

These unaudited consolidated financial statemectade the accounts of BioMarin and its wholly owdrseibsidiaries. All significant
intercompany transactions have been eliminateds@ beaudited consolidated financial statements haga prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the. JJSS. GAAP) for interim financial information artde Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) requirements for interim reportidgwever, they do not include all of the infornaatiand footnotes required by U.S.
GAAP for complete financial statements. In the da@inof management, all adjustments, consistingoofmal recurring adjustments, considered
necessary for a fair presentation have been indlude

Operating results for the three and six months @éddee 30, 2008 are not necessarily indicative®fésults that may be expected for
year ending December 31, 2008. These consolidataddial statements should be read in conjunctiith thie consolidated financi
statements and footnotes thereto for the year eDgedmber 31, 2007, included in the Company’s AhR&gort on Form 10-K.

(b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make aedatimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets antlitiie$, disclosure of contingent assets and litibg at the dates of the financial statements, anc
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegydheneporting period. Actual results could diffiemm those estimates.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company treats liquid investments with origimeiturities of less than three months when purchasecash and cash equivalents.

6
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(Unaudited)

(d) Short-Term Investments

The Company records its investments as either toefdaturity or available-for-sale. Held-to-maturitwestments are recorded at
amortized cost. Available-for-sale investmentsramorded at fair market value, with unrealized gainlosses being included in accumulated
other comprehensive income/loss. Short-term investsare comprised mainly of corporate securiiesymercial paper, federal agency
investments and money market funds. As of Jun@@08, the Company had no held-to-maturity investsien

(e) Inventory

The Company values inventories at the lower of costet realizable value. The Company determinegtst of inventory using the
average cost method. The Company analyzes its ioselevels quarterly and writes down inventorytthas become obsolete, inventory that
has a cost basis in excess of its expected nézabld value and inventory quantities in excessxplected requirements. Expired inventory is
disposed of and the related costs are writtenootbst of sales.

United States regulatory approval for Kuvan wagned in December 2007, and manufacturing costthferproduct prior to this date
were expensed as research and development exp&heeSompany considers regulatory approval of pcbdandidates to be uncertain, and
product manufactured prior to regulatory approvaiymot be sold unless regulatory approval is obtairs such, the manufacturing costs for
Kuvan prior to regulatory approval were not cajuted as inventory. When regulatory approval wasioled, the Company began capitalizing
inventory at the lower of cost or net realizabléuea

In the first quarter of 2008, the Company recei$2d.8 million of inventory distributed by the Conmy&s joint venture with Genzyme
pursuant to the terms of the joint venture restnticy (see Note 4 for further information). The éméory distribution was recorded at the
historical production cost, which represented tvedr of cost or market value.

Stock-based compensation of $1.1 million and $21om was capitalized into inventory for the thread six months ended June 30,
2008, respectively, compared to $0.6 million and$tillion capitalized into inventory for the thraed six months ended June 30, 2007,
respectively.

See Note 5 for further information on inventorydraies as of December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2008.

(f) Investment in and Advances to BioMarin/Genziht@ and Equity in the Income (Loss) of BioMarin/@gme LLC

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company restructitsectlationship with Genzyme (see Note 4 fortiartinformation). The Company
accounts for its remaining investment in the joi@nture using the equity method. Accordingly, tler@any records an increase in its
investment for contributions to the joint ventureldor its 50% share of the income of the jointtuea, and a reduction in its investment for its
50% share of any losses of the joint venture dsudisements of profits from the joint venture. Eguit the income (loss) of BioMarin/Genzy:
LLC includes the Company’s 50% share of the joenture’s loss/income for the period. Advances wMBirin/Genzyme LLC include the
current receivable from the joint venture for tkémbursement related to services provided to time y@nture by the Company and the
investment in BioMarin/Genzyme LLC includes the GQuamy'’s share of the net equity of the joint venture

(g) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cagirdziation is computed using the straight-linehodtover the related estimated useful
lives, except for leasehold improvements, whichdsereciated over the shorter of the useful lifehefasset or the lease term. Significant
additions and improvements are capitalized, whgfgirs and maintenance are charged to expensewaseih. Property and equipment
purchased for specific research and developmefggisowith no alternative uses are expensed asrgttuSee Note 6 for further information
on property, plant and equipment balances as oéber 31, 2007 and June 30, 2008.

Certain of the Compang’operating lease agreements include schedule@sealations over the lease term, as well as temgmovemer
allowances. The Company accounts for these opgrigtases in accordance with Statement of FinaBdabunting Standard (SFAS) No. 13,
Accounting for Lease, and Financial Accounting Standards Board (FAS&jhhical Bulletin No. 85-3Accounting for Operating Leases with
Scheduled Rent IncreaseAccordingly, the scheduled increases in rent egpeare recognized on a straight-line basis oeeletise term. The
difference between rent expense and rent paictézded as deferred rent and included in otherliiegs in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The tenant improvement allowamzbfe@e rent periods are recognized as a credértbexpense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

(h) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance hétpriovisions of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin N@4, Revenue Recognition
(SAB 104), and Emerging Issues Task Force IssudBli@1,Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multipédii@rables. The
Compan'’s revenues consist of net product revenues frontaXgge and Kuvan and, starting January 1, 2008, ratdyme, revenues from |



collaborative agreement with Merck Serono and olibense and royalty revenues. Milestone paymemtsexognized in full when the
related milestone performance goal is achievedia@d€ompany has no future performance obligatiefeted to that payment.
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(Unaudited)

Net Product Revenue-The Company recognizes net product revenue froduralzyme, Naglazyme and Kuvan when persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, the producbbas delivered to the customer, title and riskosElhave passed to the customer, the price to
the buyer is fixed or determinable and collectimmf the customer is reasonably assured. Prodwes sainsactions are evidenced by customer
purchase orders, customer contracts, invoices atttéaelated shipping documents. Amounts colleftexth customers and remitted to
governmental authorities, which are primarily corsgd of value-added taxes (VAT) related to Naglagygales in foreign jurisdictions, are
presented on a net basis in the Company’s statsmépperations, in accordance with Emerging IsJissk Force Issue No. 0643pw Taxes
Collected from Customers and Remitted to Goverrahénithorities Should Be Presented in the Incona¢eBtentjn that taxes billed to
customers are not included as a component of oelupt sales.

The Company began recognizing revenue relateddardkzyme in the first quarter of 2008, effectivéhathe restructuring of the
Company’s Aldurazyme joint venture with Genzymee(Blote 4 for further information). According to ttegms of the joint venture
restructuring, BioMarin receives a 39.5 to 50 peteeyalty on worldwide net Aldurazyme sales by @ene depending on sales volume,
which is included in net product revenue in thesmidated statements of operations. In additioa,Gbmpany recognizes product transfer
revenue when product is shipped to Genzyme ag #ileadCompany’s performance obligations are fudfillat that point. The amount of product
transfer revenue will eventually be deducted froyaities earned when the product is sold by Genzylihe Company records the Aldurazy
royalty revenue based on net sales informationigeavby Genzyme and records product transfer rexveaged on the fulfillment of Genzyme
purchase orders in accordance with SAB 104 antktines of the related agreements with Genzyme. Alsié 30, 2008, accounts receivable
included $7.7 million of unbilled accounts receilatelated to net incremental Aldurazyme produmtsfers to Genzyme.

The Company sells Naglazyme worldwide and sellsafuwn the U.S. In the U.S., Naglazyme and Kuvargareerally sold to specialty
pharmacies or end-users, such as hospitals, whichsaetailers. In the E.U., Naglazyme is soltheoCompany’s authorized European
distributors or directly to hospitals, which actthe end-users. Additionally, the Company recereegnue from sales of Naglazyme in other
countries, which are generally made to distributwrdirectly to hospitals. Because of the pricifigNaglazyme and Kuvan, the limited number
of patients and the customers’ limited return rigiNaglazyme and Kuvan customers and retailersrgiynearry a very limited inventory.
Accordingly, the Company expects that sales relaiddaglazyme and Kuvan will be closely tied to ersgr demand.

The Company records reserves for rebates payalkr bhedicaid and other government programs asctieah of revenue at the time
product sales are recorded. The Compsuingserve calculations require estimates, includstgnates of customer mix, to determine whichs
will be subject to rebates and the amount of seblates. The Company updates its estimates and pisaseach period, and records any
necessary adjustments to its reserves. The Contpanyds fees paid to distributors as a reductiaeeénue, in accordance with EITF Issue
No. 01-09, Accounting for Consideration given by a Vendor ©ustomer (including a Reseller of a Vendor’s Pradj.

The Company records allowances for product retufag@propriate, as a reduction of revenue atithe product sales are recorded.
Several factors are considered in determining wéredh allowance for product returns is requirediuding market exclusivity of the products
based on their orphan drug status, the patientlptpn, the customers’ limited return rights and ompany’s experience with returns.
Genzyme'’s return rights for Aldurazyme are gengrathited to product defects. Based on these factmianagement has concluded that
product returns will be minimal. In the futureaifiy of these factors and/or the history of prodatirns changes, an allowance for product
returns may be required. The Company maintaindieypm record allowances for doubtful accountsdstimated losses resulting from the
inability of its customers to make required paymnseis of June 30, 2008, the Company has experiemeeignificant bad debts and the
recorded allowance for doubtful accounts was irfigant.

Collaborative agreement revenuesCollaborative agreement revenues from Merck Semdade both license revenue and contract
research revenue. Nonrefundable up-front license ¥éhere the Company has continuing involvemewutlin research and development
collaboration are initially deferred and recognizexdcollaborative agreement license revenue oeeedtimated period for which the Company
continues to have a performance obligation. The oW estimates that its performance obligationtedi#o the $25.0 million upfront payme
from Merck Serono will end in the fourth quartera®f08. There is no cost of sales associated wilathortization of the up-front license fee
received from Merck Serono. Nonrefundable amoustteived for shared development costs are recogageelvenue in the period in which
the related expenses are incurred. Contract rdseavenue included in collaborative agreement regsmepresents Merck Serono’s share of
Kuvan development costs under the agreement, varhecorded as research and development expéiiesgble costs during the
development period must have been included in teeapproved annual budget in order to be subjeaitobursement, or must be separately
approved by both parties.
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(Unaudited)

Collaborative agreement revenues during the thndesex months ended June 30, 2008 include $1.5omitind $3.0 million, respective
of the up-front license fee received from Merckder recognized as revenue and $1.0 million and ®21®n of reimbursable Kuvan
development costs incurred during the three andhsinths ended June 30, 2008, respectively. Colidiveragreement revenues during the
three and six months ended June 30, 2007 includerillion and $3.6 million, respectively, of the-front license fee received from Merck
Serono recognized as revenue and $1.7 million dnt iillion of reimbursable Kuvan development castairred during the three and six
months ended June 30, 2007, respectively. Amoitizatf the up-front license fee received from Me8grono and recognized as revenue
decreased during the second quarter and first entims of 2008 compared to the same period in 20@7pdmarily to the changes in the
amortization period.

Royalty and license revenuesRoyalty revenue includes royalties on net salgsroflucts with which the Company has no direct
involvement and is recognized based on data repbstdicensees or sublicensees. Royalties are neoedjas earned in accordance with the
contract terms, when the royalty amount is fixedleterminable based on information received froenstiiblicensee and when collectibility is
reasonably assured.

Royalty and license revenues include royalty reesrftom Orapred product sold by the sublicenseé d¢f million and $1.5 million for
the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, atbaglg, compared to $0.4 million and $0.8 millitor the three and six month periods ended
June 30, 2007, respectively. There is no costlebsassociated with the royalty and license revemeeorded during the periods and no related
costs are expected in future periods.

The Company recognized the $4.0 million milestanthie second quarter of 2007 as a result of theyeaeanniversary of FDA approval
for the marketing application of Orapred ODT. Altigh the receipt of the $4.0 million payment wasedasolely on the passage of time from
the FDA approval, the Company did not recognizepéngment during the twelve-month period followimgpeoval because the fee was not
considered to be fixed or determinable until itdvee due and payable. In making this determinatimmagement considered the extended one
year payment term, the related uncertain futuregebsales, and the Compi’s lack of experience with Sciele. Milestone paytseare
recognized in full when the related milestone penfance goal is achieved and the Company has ncefprformance obligations related to
that payment.

(i) Research and Development

Research and development expenses include expesssdated with contract research and developnmewnided by third parties,
product manufacturing prior to regulatory approe#ihical and regulatory costs, and internal resle@and development costs. In instances
where the Company enters into agreements with gartles for research and development activitiestscare expensed upon the earlier of
when goods are received or as services are perfborfte accounting for amounts due under arrangentieat include upfront payments and
payments upon the completion of milestones areuetadl based on the nature of the underlying searndewhether there is an alternative
future use in other research and development gsjé¢hen non-refundable amounts are paid in advahfteure services, the cost is
capitalized and expensed as the services are pertbiThe Company accrues costs for clinical tgéivaies based upon estimates of the
services received and related expenses incurréthdive yet to be invoiced by the vendors that perfthe activities.
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(Unaudited)

() Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is calculatediviging net income/loss by the weighted averagees of common stock outstanding
during the period. Diluted net income (loss) parsireflects the potential dilution that would ocifisecurities or other contracts to issue
common stock were exercised or converted into comshack; however, potential common equivalent share excluded if their effect is anti-
dilutive. Potential shares of common stock inclatlares issuable upon the exercise of outstandipdpgee stock option awards, common
stock issuable under our Employee Stock Purchase(BISPP), restricted stock and contingent isssaoiceommon stock related to
convertible debt and acquisition obligation payabler the three and six months ended June 30, 20@#h, potential shares of common stock
were excluded from the computation of diluted wsslper share, as their effect is antidilutive.

Potentially dilutive securities for the three aidmaonths ended June 30, 2007 include (in thougands

June 30, 200
Options to purchase common st 12,18:
Common stock issuable under convertible 26,36
Portion of acquisition payable in common stockhat dption of the Compar 47¢
Potentially issuable common stock for ESPP purah 33C
Potentially issuable restricted stc 114
Total 39,47:

The following represents a reconciliation from lbaseighted shares outstanding to diluted weightedes outstanding and the earnings
per share for the three and six months ended Jun2088 (in thousands, except per share data):

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2008
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Shares Outstanding Per Share Shares Outstanding Per Share
Net Income Net Income
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount (Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
Basic Earnings Per Shai
Net Income $ 3,81C 98,92 $ 0.04 $ 5,49¢ 98,28¢ $ 0.0¢€
Effect of dilutive shares
Stock options using the treasury metl 4,702 5,16:
Portion of acquisition payable in common sto
at the option of the Compal 297 297
Potentially issuable restricted stc 8C 83
Potentially issuable common stock for ES 11¢ 12C
Diluted Earnings Per Shar
Net Income $ 3,81(C 104,12( $ 0.04 $ 5,49¢ 103,94¢ $ 0.0

In addition to the options included in the abovadaoptions to purchase approximately 1.5 milkor 0.9 million shares of common
stock were outstanding during the three and sixthzoeanded June 30, 2008, respectively, but werénohtded in the computation of diluted
earnings per share because they were anti-dildtivieg the period using the treasury stock metfibese options were anti-dilutive because
the fair value of the Company'’s stock exceedechdseimed proceeds. Additionally, approximately 26illon of the underlying shares of the
Company’s convertible debt were not included indheted average common shares outstanding bethegaevere antidilutive during both the
three and six months ended June 30, 2008 usintfibenverted” method whereby the related intergbense on the convertible debt is added
to net income for the period.
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(k) Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is accounted for in aacorlwith SFAS No. 123FBhare-Based Paymeand related interpretations. Under
the fair value recognition provisions of this sta@nt, stock-based compensation cost is measuthd gtant date based on the value of the
award and is recognized as expense over the vgstimogd. Determining the fair value of share-baaedrds at the grant date requires
judgment, including estimating future stock pricgatility and employee stock option exercise bebes:ilf actual results differ significant
from these estimates, stock-based compensatiomsg@ed results of operations could be materialfyaicted.

Expected volatility is based upon proportionateghéings of the historical volatility of the Compasgtock and the implied volatility of
traded options on the Company’s stock. The expdifeedf options is based on observed historicareise patterns, which can vary over time.

As stock-based compensation expense recognizéeé iconsolidated statements of operation is basedvands expected to vest, the
amount of expense has been reduced for estimatieitdoes. SFAS No. 123R requires forfeitures teebmated at the time of grant and
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periodstifaéorfeitures differ from those estimates. Fitfiees are estimated based on historical
experience.

If factors change and different assumptions arel@yeg in the application of SFAS No. 123R, the cemgation expense recorded in
future periods may differ significantly from whatw recorded in the current period. See Note 3ufidhér discussion of the Company’s
accounting for stock-based compensation.

() Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the asset and liability metbbdccounting for income taxes. Under this metltederred taxes are determined
based on the difference between the financial rstaté and tax bases of assets and liabilities usixgates expected to be in effect in the years
in which the differences are expected to reversealfation allowance is recorded to reduce defetadssets to the amount that is more li
than not to be realized. There was a full valuaéibowance against net deferred tax assets of 828#lion at December 31, 2007. Future
taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasiblpl@xning strategies have been considered in asgabg need for the valuation allowance.
An adjustment to the valuation allowance would &&se or decrease income in the period such adjosta@s made. For the three and six
months ended June 30, 2008, the Company recogfitz&dnillion and $0.3 million of income tax expemstated to income earned in certain
of the Company'’s international subsidiaries, reipely compared to $0.4 million in both the threelasix months ended June 30, 2007.
Despite the Company'’s recording net income dutiregstecond quarter and first half of 2008, the Comisaanalysis under FASB
Interpretation No. 18Accounting for Income Taxes In Interim Periods (Aterpretation of APB Opinion No. 28sulted in a projected
ordinary loss for 2008 due to the exclusion of utae development milestone revenue and other peemtaand temporary differences betw
book and tax income. Therefore the Company hasemorded current U.S. Federal or state incomexperese and has not released the
valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets

(m) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB released SFAS No. 14Biginess Combination$his Statement applies prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is omfter the beginning of the first annual reportpegiod beginning on or after December 15,
2008, which would impact business combinations deted after January 1, 2009. The objective of ietement is to improve the relevance,
representational faithfulness, and comparabilitthefinformation that a reporting entity providasts financial reports about a business
combination and its effects. The effect of thigestaent on the Company’s consolidated financialtpmsiresults of operations or cash flows
will depend on the potential future business comatiims entered into by the Company that will begecttito the statement.

In December 2007, the FASB released SFAS No. Mlié@controlling Interests in Consolidated Financi&htements—an amendment of
ARB No. 51This Statement is effective for fiscal years, ameiim periods within those fiscal years, beginnamgor after December 15, 2008,
which for the Company is the year ending Decemtie2809, and the interim periods within that fispaar. The Company does not expect the
adoption of SFAS No. 160 to have a material eféecits consolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. TH4closures About Derivative Instruments and Heddhativities - an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 1(SFAS 161). SFAS 161 amends SFAS No. 133 by reguakpanded disclosures about an entity’s derigativ
instruments and hedging activities. SFAS 161 repuijualitative disclosures about objectives arateggies for using derivatives, quantitative
disclosures about fair value amounts of and gaidd@sses on derivative instruments, and disclesabeut credit-risk-related contingent
features in derivative instruments. SFAS 161 ie@ffe for the Company as of January 1, 2009. Téva@any is still evaluating the impact
SFAS 161 will have on its consolidated financialtsiments.
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In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168g¢ Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Biptes. SFAS No. 162 identifies the
sources of accounting principles and the frameviariselecting the principles used in the preparatibfinancial statements that are presented
in conformity with generally accepted accountingpiples. SFAS No. 162 becomes effective 60 daifeviing the SEC’s approval of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amends@anStatement on Auditing Standards No. B8 Meaning of Present Fairly in
Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Piptes, for periods completed after January 1, 2009. Campany does not expect that
adoption of SFAS No. 162 to have a material eféecits consolidated financial statements.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positidn. FAS 142-3Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible As{ESP FAS 142-
3), which amends the factors that should be consitlie developing renewal or extension assumptisesl to determine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under FASB StatemenflB®,Goodwill and Other Intangible AsseESP FAS 142-3 also requires expanded
disclosure related to the determination of intalegésset useful lives. This Statement is effediivdiscal years beginning on or after
December 15, 2008, which for the Company is the gading December 31, 2009. The Company is cugr@vihluating the potential impact
the adoption of FSP FAS 142-3 will have on its adidated financial statements.

(n) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (LosS)

Comprehensive income/loss includes net income#adscertain changes in stockholders’ equity thatscluded from net income/loss,
such as changes in unrealized gains and losséed@ampany’s available-for-sale securities, unzedligains and losses on foreign exchange
hedges, and changes in the Company’s cumulatieggfoicurrency translation account. There were retiects allocated to any components
of other comprehensive income (loss) during theseéauarters or first six months of 2007 or 2008.

Comprehensive income was approximately $2.9 miléind $4.8 million for the three and six months ehdiene 30, 2008, respectively,
compared to comprehensive loss of $3.9 million $b8.1 million for the three and six months endenkJ80, 2007, respectively.
Comprehensive income (loss) included the follondhgnges in accumulated other comprehensive inclrsg) (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2008 2007 2008
Net unrealized gain (loss) on availe-for-sale securitie $ @ $ (B39 $ 16 $ (321
Net unrealized loss on foreign exchange het — (391) — (391
Net foreign currency translation gain (lo 2 (1) 2 (2)
Other comprehensive income (lo. $ @ $ (9260 $ 18 $ (719

(o) Reclassifications and Adjustments
Certain items in the prior year’s consolidated ficial statements have been reclassified to confortihhe current presentation.

In the second quarter of 2008, the Company recoadenuit of period adjustment to correct inventargl paroperty, plant and equipment
balances for sales taxes associated with purchazds between April 2007 and March 2008 that war@neously expensed at the time of
purchase. The correction reduced operating expérys$s.2 million during the second quarter of 200Be amounts capitalized into inventory
will be recognized into cost of goods sold as theentory is sold and the amounts capitalized imaperty, plant and equipment will be
depreciated over the assets’ respective estimaiefildives. The Company determined that the impétte adjustment was not material to
prior periods or to the expected results for tharynded December 31, 2008, and as such the adjutstvas recorded in the second quarter of
2008 under the provisions of Accounting Princifesmard Opinion (APB) No. 28nterim Financial Reporting.
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(3) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company’s stock-based compensation plans iadhel 2006 Share Incentive Plan and the ESPP. Titese are administered by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directorsictv selects persons to receive awards and detesrttie number of shares subject to
each award and the terms, conditions, performaregsures and other provisions of the award. Reatierdd refer to Note 3 of the Compasy’
consolidated financial statements in the Annuald®epn Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decen#ier2007, for additional information
related to these stock-based compensation plans.

Determining the Fair Value of Stock Options

The fair value of each option award is estimatethendate of grant using the Bla8icholes valuation model and the assumptions na
the table below. The expected life of options isdahon observed historical exercise patterns. Grofipmployees that have similar historical
exercise patterns were considered separately foatian purposes, but none were identified thatdiatinctly different exercise patterns as of
June 30, 2008. The expected volatility of stockay is based upon proportionate weightings otiktorical volatility of the Company’stocl
and the implied volatility of traded options on tBempany’s stock for fiscal periods in which thexeufficient trading volume in options on
the Company’s stock. The risk free interest rateased on the implied yield on a U.S. Treasury-zeupon issue with a remaining term equal
to the expected term of the option. The divideraddyreflects that the Company has not paid any dastiends since inception and does not
intend to pay any cash dividends in the foreseealilee. During the first six months of 2008, then@pany granted 2.9 million stock options
under the 2006 Share Incentive Plan, with a wedyhteerage fair value of $38.28. The Company alsotgd approximately 42,000 options
under the ESPP with a weighted average fair vali$19.11 during the first six months of 2008. Tlsswamptions used to estimate the fair vi
of stock options granted and stock purchase rigtasted under the Company’s ESPP for the threesandonths ended June 30, 2007 and
2008 are as follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2008 2007 2008
Stock options:
Weighted average fair value of common st $ 17.3¢ $ 38.4¢ $ 17.3¢ $ 38.3:
Expected life 5.4 year 5.4 year 5.2-5.4 year 5.2-5.4 year
Volatility 49% 47% 48-49% 45— 47%
Risk-free interest rat 5.1% 3.2% 4.7-5.1% 2.8-3.2%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0%
Three and Six Months Endec
June 30,
2007 2008
ESPP:
Fair market value of common sto $16.4: $37.6:
Expected life 6 — 24 month 6 — 24 month
Volatility 49.2% 47 .L%
Risk-free interest rat 5.C% 1.7-5.2%
Dividend yield 0% 0%
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Restricted Stock Uni

Restricted stock units (RSUs) are generally sult@firfeiture if employment terminates prior t@ttelease of vesting restrictions. The
Company expenses the cost of the RSUs, which &smdéted to be the fair market value of the sharetetlying the RSU at the date of grant,
ratably over the period during which the vestingtrietions lapse. During the six months ended Bihe&007, the Company granted 114,750
RSUs with a fair market value of $17.33 pet shBe.the six months ended June 30, 2008, the Comgiamged 157,630 RSUs with a fair
market value of $38.45 per share.

Stock-based Compensation Expense

The compensation expense that has been includbé @ompany’s consolidated statement of operafnstock-based compensation
arrangements were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2008 2007 2008
Cost of sale: $ 117 $ 392 $ 281 $ 58¢
Selling, general and administrative expe 2,58 3,497 4,63¢ 6,20¢
Research and developm: 1,55¢ 2,056¢  2,90: 3,61
Total stocl-based compensation expe! $ 425¢ $ 594¢ $7,81¢ $10,41:

Stock-based compensation of $1.0 million and $21om was capitalized into inventory for the sixomths ended June 30, 2007 and
2008, respectively. Capitalized stock-based congi@nsis recognized into cost of sales when thateel product is sold.
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(4) JOINT VENTURE

Effective January 2008, the Company and Genzynteutared BioMarin/Genzyme LLC. Under the revisédisture, the operational
responsibilities for BioMarin and Genzyme did nigingficantly change, as Genzyme continues to glglbahrket and sell Aldurazyme and
BioMarin continues to manufacture Aldurazyme. Adahuary 1, 2008, instead of sharing all costspaafits equally through the 50/50 joint
venture, Genzyme records sales of Aldurazyme td {trrty customers and pays BioMarin a tiered payrenging from approximately 39.5
50 percent of worldwide net product sales dependimgales volume, which is recorded by BioMaripaxiuct revenue. In addition, the
Company recognizes product transfer revenue whediugt is shipped to Genzyme. The amount of prottanosfer revenue is deducted from
royalties earned when the product is sold by Gerzy@ertain research and development activitiesraetlectual property related to
Aldurazyme continues to be managed in the jointienwith the costs shared equally by BioMarin &mhzyme. Pursuant to the terms of the
joint venture restructuring, the Company receivistridhutions of $16.7 million of cash and $26.8 i of inventory from the joint venture
the first quarter of 2008.

The Company presents the related cost of salegsAttlurazyme-related operating expenses as dpgrakpenses in the consolidated
statements of operations. Equity in the incomesjla$ BioMarin/Genzyme LLC subsequent to the regtring includes BioMarirs 50% shar
of the net income/loss of BioMarin/Genzyme LLC tethto intellectual property management and ongoésgarch and development activit
The results of the joint venture’s operations far three and six months ended June 30, 2007 ar@l&28@resented in the table below (in
thousands).

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2007 2008 2007 2008

Net product sale $29,12¢ $ —  $55,94¢ $ —

Cost of goods sol 6,58 — 12,88« —

Gross profi 22,54 — 43,06¢ —
Operating expenst 9,58¢ 1,30¢ 17,95: 2,42¢
Income (loss) from operatiol 12,95¢ (1,305 25,11 (2,429
Other income 142 131 313 18¢
Net income (loss $13,10C $(1,174) $25,42F $(2,240
Equity in the income (loss) of BioMarin/Genzyme L $ 655 $ (587 $12,71: $(1,120)

At December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2008, the sumethassets and liabilities of the joint venture tedcomponents of the Company’s
investment in the joint venture are as followstfiausands):

December 31, 20C June 30, 200
Assets $ 98,34( $ 1,62¢
Liabilities (8,57%) (999
Net equity $ 89,76: $ 62¢
Investment in BioMarin/Genzyme LLC (50% share of eguity) $ 44,88 $ 31E

The critical accounting policies of BioMarin/GenzgraLC relevant to its operations prior to the resturing are discussed in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeadedd December 31, 2007.
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(5) SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

As of December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2008, shartitevestments consisted of the following (in thaods):

December 31, 20C June 30, 200
Corporate securitie $ 88,22¢ $ 47,07
Commercial pape 259,22; 134,68t
U.S. Government agency securit 9,80/ 141,68:
Total shor-term investment $ 357,25! $ 323,44t

As of December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2008, invermnsisted of the following (in thousands):
December 31, 20C June 30, 200
Raw materials $ 5,69¢ $ 9,78¢
Work in proces: 14,45¢ 31,64
Finished good 12,29: 20,37
Total inventory $ 32,44¢ $ 61,80:

As of December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2008, accpaytshle and accrued liabilities consisted of tilwing (in thousands):

December 31, 20C

Accounts payabl $ 1,16¢
Accrued accounts payak 27,37%
Accrued vacatiol 2,82(
Accrued compensatic 9,931
Accrued interest and tax 2,53
Accrued royaltie: 1,32¢
Other accrued expens 1,15¢
Accrued rebate 1,81¢
Acquired rebates and returns rese 742
Returns reserv 61
Shor-term portion of deferred compensation liabi 85¢
Current portion of deferred re 11E
Total accounts payable and accrued liabili $ 49,90;

As of December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2008, otimgr-term liabilities consisted of the following ({inousands):

December 31, 20C

Long-term portion of deferred rel $ 1,63¢

Long-term portion of capital lease liabili —

Long-term portion of deferred compensation liabi 447
Total other lon-term liabilities $ 2,082

16

June 30, 200
$ 2,84
26,32¢
3,661
11,02
2,42z
3,07¢
1,74¢
2,93(

107

131
$ 54,26

June 30, 200
$  1,14(
191
771
$ 2,10¢
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(6) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment at December 31, 20@7June 30, 2008, consisted of (in thousands):

December 31

June 30

Category 2007 2008 ’ Estimated Useful Lives
Leasehold improvemen $ 3358: $ 27,17 Shorter of life of asset or lease te
Building and improvement 26,78¢ 54,55¢ 20 years
Manufacturing and laboratory equipmt 19,40: 24,37¢ 5 years
Computer hardware and softwe 9,657 11,92: 3 years
Office furniture and equipme! 3,991 4,007 5 years
Land 4,25¢ 10,05¢ Not applicable
Constructiorin-progress 13,952 13,057 Not applicable

Gross property, plant and equipm $ 111,62¢ $145,15¢
Less: Accumulated depreciati (34,81)  (39,95)

Total property, plant and equipment, $ 76,81¢ $105,19¢

Depreciation for the three and six months endee By 2008 was $2.9 million and $5.3 million, regtpeely, of which $0.8 million and
$1.3 million was capitalized into inventory, restpeely. Depreciation for the three and six monthded June 30, 2007 was $1.9 million and
$3.6 million, respectively, of which $0.4 millioma $0.8 million was capitalized into inventory, pestively.

Capitalized interest related to the Company’s prigpelant and equipment purchases during the tanekesix months ended June 30,
2007 and 2008 was insignificant.

In January 2008, the Company purchased its prelyidessed laboratory/office building located at 3 Marin Keys Drive for
approximately $12.0 million. As a result of the ghaise, the Company capitalized certain pre-existefgrred rent liabilities of approximately
$0.5 million as a reduction to the acquisition aafsthe building.
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(7) CONVERTIBLE DEBT

In April 2007, the Company sold approximately $32¢hillion of Senior Subordinated Convertible Notiese 2017. The debt was issued
at face value and bears interest at the rate @b%8per annum, payable semi-annually in cash. Elid convertible, at the option of the
holder, at any time prior to maturity or redemptiorio shares of Company common stock at a cormergiice of approximately $20.36 per
share, subject to adjustment in certain circums&snithere is no call provision included and the Gany is unable to unilaterally redeem the
debt prior to maturity on April 23, 2017. The Compalso must repay the debt if there is a qualgychange in control or termination of
trading of its common stock.

In connection with the placement of the April 2af#bt, the Company paid approximately $8.5 millioroffering costs, which have been
deferred and are included in other assets. Thepaing amortized as interest expense over thefifee debt. The Company recognized $0.2
million and $0.4 million of amortization expenseridg the three and six months ended June 30, 288B¢ctively. Amortization expense was
$0.2 million for both the three and six months ehdene 30, 2007.

In March 2006, the Company sold $172.5 million eh®r Subordinated Convertible Notes due 2013.ddi# was issued at face value
and bears interest at the rate of 2.5% per annayalj}e semi-annually in cash. The debt is conertdt the option of the holder, at any time
prior to maturity or redemption, into shares of Qamy common stock at a conversion price of appratety $16.58 per share, subject to
adjustment in certain circumstances. There is Higoavision included and the Company is unablendaterally redeem the debt prior to
maturity on March 29, 2013. The Company also meggay the debt if there is a qualifying change intoa or termination of trading of its
common stock.

In connection with the placement of the March 2686t, the Company paid approximately $5.5 milliomffering costs, which have
been deferred and are included in other assety. difecbeing amortized as interest expense ovdif¢hef the debt, and the Company
recognized $0.2 million and $0.4 million of amoation expense during the three and six months edulied 30, 2008, respectively.
Amortization expense was $0.2 million and $0.4 inillduring the three and six months ended Jun@@W7, respectively. During the first six
months of 2008, certain note holders voluntarilgfeanged an insignificant number of convertible adtg shares of the Company’s common
stock.

Interest expense for the three and six months eddee 30, 2008 was $4.1 million and $8.2 milli@spectively, and each period
included $1.1 million and $2.2 million, respectiyegih imputed interest expense related to the Cawysaacquisition obligation. Interest
expense for the three and six months ended Juri208@,was $3.7 million and $6.1 million, respedyyand included $1.1 million and $2.3
million in imputed interest expense, respectively.
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(8) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Foreign Currency and Other Hedging Instrume

The Company follows the provisions of SFAS No. 188counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities, as amended.
SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and reportargdards for derivative instruments and hedginiyidies and requires the Company to
recognize these as either assets or liabilitietherbalance sheet and measure them at fair vahgeadcounting for gains and losses resulting
from changes in fair value is dependent on theofisiee derivative and whether it is designated qunalifies for hedge accounting.

Economic and Accounting Hedg—Hedges of Forecasted Transactions

The Company uses forward foreign exchange conttadtedge certain operational exposures resultmg thanges in foreign currency
exchange rates. Such exposures result from portibosr forecasted revenues being denominatedrirecies other than the U.S. dollar,
primarily the Euro. These foreign exchange consraetve durations of six months or less and areeshiato in the normal course of business;
as such they are not speculative.

All hedging relationships are formally documentéthe inception of the hedge and must meet thenidiefn of highly effective in
offsetting changes to future cash flows within theaning of SFAS No. 133 to be a qualifying heddee &ffectiveness of the qualifying hedge
contract, excluding the time value of money, iseased quarterly using regression analysis. The @oyngecords changes in the fair value of
the derivative instruments designated as qualiffiadges of forecasted non-U.S. dollar revenue fsosduct sales in other current assets and
other current liabilities. Gains or losses resgltfirom changes in the fair value of qualifying hedgs initially reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income/loss irkBtdders’ equity, until the forecasted transactiaours. When the forecasted transaction
occurs this amount is reclassified into revenueofAtune 30, 2008 the Company expects the enticaatnin other comprehensive income t
reclassified to earnings within twelve months. Amn-qualifying portion of the gains or losses résglfrom changes in fair value, if any, is
reported in the Company'’s statement of operatioreperating expenses.

In the event the underlying forecasted transaadimes not occur, or it becomes remote that it vatluy, the gain or loss on the related
hedge is reclassified from accumulated other cohgrsive income/loss to other income on the conatadistatement of income at that time.
During the quarter, there were no such net gairlgsses recognized.

As of June 30, 2008, the Company had open contiateting $21.2 million that qualified for hedgecaanting, $0.4 million in other
comprehensive income representing the anticipatesitb be reclassified to revenue over the nexvenmonths as the forecasted transactions
occur. During the second quarter the Company razedra net loss of $15,000 in revenue relatingeidged transactions which occurred. The
ineffective portion of the gains or losses resgltirom changes in fair value was insignificant. Toes representing time value excluded from
the assessment of the hedge effectiveness was érialand is included in operating expense on the@any’s statement of operations.

The Company did not enter into any derivative teatisns which qualified for hedge accounting unr8EAS No. 133, as amended, prior
to the second quarter of 2008.
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(9) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In January 2008, the Company adopted SFAS No.“16&ir Value Measurementsfor financial assets and liabilities. SFAS No.715
utilizes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizeg timputs to valuation techniques used to measirgdhie into three broad levels. Level 1
involves observable inputs such as unadjusted dywiees in active markets for identical assetailities. Level 2 involves inputs other th
guoted prices that are observable for the asdethility, either directly or indirectly, which inade quoted prices for similar assets or liab#itie
in active markets and quoted prices for identicaimilar assets or liabilities in markets that act active. Level 3 involves unobservable
inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own asstions. The Company measures certain financigtsssd liabilities at fair value on a
recurring basis, including available-for-sale fixadome and equity securities, other equity selesriind foreign currency derivatives. The
table below presents the fair value of these aeftaancial assets and liabilities determined ushginputs defined at June 30, 2008, by SFAS
No. 157.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB FSP 157-2hilelays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 fbnanfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities, except those that areogatized or disclosed at fair value in the finansiatements at least annually, until fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008, and interimgugiwithin those fiscal years. The partial adoptdéSFAS No. 157 for financial assets and
liabilities did not have a material impact on thentpany’s consolidated financial position, resuftsperations or cash flows.

Fair Value Measurements (in thousands
at Reporting Date Using:

Quoted Price in Active Significant
Significant Other Unobservable
Markets for Identical Observable Inputs
Assets Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Money market funds and overnight depo€its $252,20¢ $ 12,067 $ 240,14. $ —
Corporate equity securitié? 47,073 — 47,077 —
Government agencié3 141,68 — 141,68 —
Commercial pape® 134,68 — 134,68’ —
Foreign currency derivative® 36 — 36 —
Total $575,69: $ 12,06" $ 563,62t $ —
Liabilities:
Foreign currency derivative® $ 53¢ $ = $ 53¢ $ =
Total $ 53¢ $ — $ 53¢ $ —

@ Included in cash and cash equivalents investmartteei Company’s consolidated balance sheet.
@ Included in short-term investments in the Compagyssolidated balance sheet.
@ Included in other assets on the Company’s condelitlbalance sheet.

@ Included in accrued expenses on the Company’s Gdaged balance sheet.

Foreign currency derivatives include forward foregxchange contracts for the Euro and the Britisimnié.
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(Unaudited)

(10) REVENUE AND CREDIT CONCENTRATIONS

The Company considers there to be revenue contientrisks for regions where net product revenueeerl 10% of consolidated net
product revenue. The concentration of the Compamyenue within the regions below may expose th@iamy to a material adverse effect if
sales in the respective regions were to experidiffieulties. The table below summarizes revenueoamtrations by region for the three anc

months ended June 30, 2007 and 2008.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2008 2007 2008
Region:
United State: 22% 51% 23% 55%
Europe 63% 28% 64% 27%
Latin America 5% 10% 5% 9%
Rest of World 10% 11% 8% 9%
Total Net Product Revent 10C% 10C% 10(% 10(%

As of June 30, 2008, accounts receivable relategtt@roduct sales of Naglazyme and Kuvan and Aldyme product transfer and
royalty revenues. On a consolidated basis, twooousts accounted for 20% and 44% of the June 3@ 26€ounts receivable balance. The
Company does not require collateral from its custiambut performs periodic credit evaluations stitistomers’ financial condition and
requires immediate payment in certain circumstances

(11) SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On July 21, 2008, the Company entered into an ekauwvorldwide licensing agreement with Summit 8ammit) related to Summit’s
preclinical product candidate SMT C1100 and follommolecules, which are being developed to treafatal genetic disorder Duchenne

muscular dystrophy (DMD). Under the terms of theeament, the Company paid $7 million for approxeha®% of Summit’s outstanding
capital stock. In addition, the agreement requinesCompany to make payments totaling up to $5liamisubject to future development and

regulatory milestones and tiered royalties basedatrsales.
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ltem 2. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statemérats defined under securities laws. Many of theatements can be identified by the
use of terminology such as “believes,” “expectsfiticipates,” “plans,” “may,” “will,” “projects,” tontinues,” “estimates,” “potential,”
“opportunity” and similar expressions. These forsroking statements may be found in “Overview,tather sections of this Form 10-Q.
Our actual results or experience could differ digantly from the forward-looking statements. Fastthat could cause or contribute to these
differences include those discussed in “Risk Fagtan our Form 10-K for the year ended December2RD7 as well as those discussed
elsewhere in this Form 10-Q. You should carefutipgider that information before you make an investhaecision.

You should not place undue reliance on these stttanwhich speak only as of the date that theyweade. These cautionary
statements should be considered in connectionamighwritten or oral forward-looking statements tvat may issue in the future. We do not
undertake any obligation to release publicly anysiens to these forward-looking statements aftengletion of the filing of this Form 1Q-to
reflect later events or circumstances, or to réflee occurrence of unanticipated events.

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read in catijom with our consolidated financial
statements and the notes thereto appearing elsewhtis quarterly report.

Overview

We develop and commercialize innovative biopharmtcals for serious diseases and medical conditdfesselect product candidates
for diseases and conditions that represent a gignifunmet medical need, have well-understoodbipbnd provide an opportunity to be first-
to-market. Our product portfolio is comprised afe approved products and multiple investigatipmatiuct candidates. Approved products
include Naglazyme, Aldurazyme, and Kuvan. Additinave have rights to receive royalties relatedi@pred® and Orapred OD™P.

Naglazyme received marketing approval in the Lh34ay 2005, in the E.U. in January 2006, and sulsetly in other countries.
Naglazyme net product sales for the second quamiéfirst six months of 2007 totaled $20.9 millemd $39.3 million, respectively, ai
increased to $35.1 million and $62.8 million in #econd quarter and first six months of 2008, rethely.

Aldurazyme has been approved for marketing in tt& E.U., and in other countries. Prior to 2008,developed and commercialized
Aldurazyme through a joint venture with GenzymdeEtive January 2008, we restructured our relatignwith Genzyme whereby Genzyme
sells Aldurazyme to third parties and we recognigalty revenue on net sales by Genzyme. In additie@ recognize product transfer revenue
when product is shipped to Genzyme and all obligetirelated to the transfer have been fulfillede @mount of product transfer revenue will
eventually be deducted from royalties earned wherptoduct is sold by Genzyme. Our Aldurazyme metlpct revenue for the second quarter
and first six months of 2008 totaled $13.4 milleamd $37.5 million, respectively.

Kuvan was granted marketing approval in the U.®écember 2007. Kuvan net product sales for thersequarter and first six months
of 2008 were $12.0 million and $17.8 million, resipeely.

We are developing PEG-PAL, an enzyme substitutienapy candidate for the treatment of PKU for pati¢hat are not responsive to
Kuvan. In May 2008, we initiated a Phase 1 clinical of PEG-PAL in PKU patients. We expect to qaete this 35 patient, open label study
in late 2008 or early 2009. The primary objectivehis study is to assess the safety and toletghifisingle subcutaneous injections of PEG-
PAL in subjects with PKU. We are developing 6R-Bl active ingredient in Kuvan, for the treatmeihtertain cardiovascular indications
including peripheral arterial disease. We expectlease data from several 6R-BH4 trials in lat@®60r early 2009. We also have several
preclinical product candidates including: GALNS fbe treatment of Morquio Syndrome Type A ( MPSAY a lysosomal storage disease, a
small molecule for the treatment of Duchenne musadystrophy, and a small molecule for the treatméoystic fibrosis.

Key components of our results of operations forttliee and six months ended June 30, 2007 and gad8de the following (in
thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2007 2008 2007 2008
Total net product revent $20,94. $60,45¢ $ 39,27¢ $118,08!
Research and development expe 19,18¢ 23,75¢ 37,34t 41,38
Selling, general and administrative expe 17,29t 25,20: 33,55¢ 48,87
Net income (loss (3,869 3,81C (13,159 5,49¢
Stoclk-based compensation expel 4,25¢ 5,94¢ 7,81¢ 10,41:

See“Results of Operationsfor a discussion of the detailed components antysisaof the amounts above. Our cash, cash equitsle
and short-term investments totaled $575.7 millismBJune 30, 2008 compared to $585.6 million d3edember 31, 2007.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies and estimatessateforth under the heading “Management’s Discusaitd Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Critical Accting Policies and Estimates” in our 2007 Form 10Aditional information regarding
updates to our policies for Aldurazyme Revenue Beition are included below. Other than discussddvibethere have been no significant
changes to our critical accounting policies ormates since December 31, 2007.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with the prowssof Securities and Exchange Commission StafbActing Bulletin No. 104 (SAI
104):Revenue Recognitigrand Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 0&&dqunting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables. Our revenues consist of Naglazyme and Kuvan proskles during 2007 and 2008, Aldurazyme prodacisfer and royalty
revenues starting with the first quarter of 20@8enues from our collaborative agreement with M&ekono and revenues from our Orapred
sublicense agreement.

We began recognizing revenue related to Alduraziyntiee first quarter of 2008 effective with thetresturing of our joint venture with
Genzyme (see Note 4 to the accompanying consatidatancial statements for further information).céeding to the terms of the joint ventt
restructuring, we receive a 39.5 to 50 percentltpym worldwide net Aldurazyme sales by Genzymbiol is included in net product revenue
in the consolidated statements of operations. tfitiat, we recognize product transfer revenue whrenluct is shipped to Genzyme and all
obligations have been fulfilled. The amount of protransfer revenue will eventually be deductednfroyalties earned when the product is
sold by Genzyme. In periods where BioMarin shiprmaftAldurazyme to Genzyme exceed quantities sottitd parties by Genzyme, we w
report incremental product transfer revenue. liioglsrwhere Genzyme sales to third parties exceedtiies shipped by BioMarin to
Genzyme, we will report net product revenue reprisg the royalty from Genzyme related to curresriqpd sales by Genzyme less the
previously recognized product transfer revenueedito the net decrease in Aldurazyme quantiti€esizyme. We record the Aldurazyme
royalty revenue based on net sales informationigeavby Genzyme and recognize product transfemgvdased on the fulfillment of
Genzyme purchase orders in accordance with SABah@4he terms of the related agreements with Geazym

We rely on Genzyme’s revenue recognition policied procedures with respect to net product reveaperting and our recording of
Aldurazyme royalty revenue. Our experience withdbmmercial aspects of Aldurazyme through BioM#&ierizyme LLC and our relationst
with Genzyme provide a reasonable basis to placke sliance on Genzyme and to make our own intgada@iments and estimates regarding
Aldurazyme revenue recognition. Genzyme'’s histdjisdgments and estimates have been accurate aedodchanged significantly over
time.

We understand that Genzyme recognizes revenueAtdarazyme product sales when persuasive evidehaa arrangement exists, the
product has been delivered to the customer, titteresk of loss have passed to the customer, flce tw the buyer is fixed or determinable and
collection from the customer is reasonably assurbd.timing of product shipment and receipts caretasignificant impact on the amount of
Aldurazyme royalty revenue that we recognize iragipular period. Also, Aldurazyme is sold in ptmtough distributors. Inventory in the
distribution channel consists of inventory helddistributors, and inventory held by retailers, sashpharmacies and hospitals. Aldurazyme
royalty revenue in a particular period can be inipady increases or decreases in distributor irored. If distributor inventories increased to
excessive levels, we could experience reducedtyop@renue in subsequent periods. To determinartiaunt of Aldurazyme inventory in the
U.S. distribution channel, we understand that Gerezyeceives data on sales and inventory levelstlirsom its primary distributors for the
product.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2(m) of our accompanying consolidatechfire statements for a full description of recertt@inting pronouncements and our
expectation of their impact on our results of oieres and financial condition.

23



Table of Contents

Results of Operations
Net Income (Loss)

Our net income for the three and six months ended 30, 2008 was $3.8 million and $5.5 million pexdively, as compared to a net |
of $3.9 million and $13.2 million for the three asid months ended June 30, 2007, respectivelyindeime for the three and six months ended

June 30, 2008 increased $7.7 million and $18.7anilbrimarily as a result of the following (in mdhs):

Three Months Endec

June 30,
Net loss for the period ended 2C $ (3.9
Increased Naglazyme gross prt 12.C
Increased Kuvan gross pra 10.€
Increased Aldurazyme gross pr¢ 12.C
Decreased collaborative agreement reve (2.0
Absence of Orapred milestone revel (4.0
Increased Orapred gross pr¢ 0.8
Increased research and development exg (4.€)
Increased selling, general and administrative esgs (7.9
Increased losses from BioMarin/Genzyme L (7.2
Decreased interest incor (2.9)
Increased interest exper (0.9
Other, ne 0.1
Net income for the period ended 2C $ 3.8

Six Months Endec

June 30,
$ (13.2)
19.¢€
15.7
25.1
(2.7
(4.0
0.7
(4.0
(15.9)
(13.9)
(0.9
(2.7)
0.1

The increase in Naglazyme gross profit during #epad quarter and first six months of 2008 as coetpt the same periods of 2007 is
primarily the result of additional patients initiay Naglazyme therapy in the U.S., E.U. and otloemtries as well as the favorable impact of
foreign currency exchange rates on Naglazyme $alascustomers based outside of the U.S. The isereaKuvan gross profit during the
second quarter and first six months of 2008 as ewatpto the same periods in 2007 is due to theleee2007 marketing approval for Kuv
in the U.S. The increase in Aldurazyme gross prhfiing the second quarter and first six month2Q0gf8 as compared to the same periods of
2007 is the result of restructuring the joint veatwith Genzyme and is partially offset by increhkesses from BioMarin/Genzyme LLC, also
due to the restructuring. The decrease in collah@agreement revenues primarily relates to lowenbursable Kuvan development expen
The increase in selling, general and administragikgense was primarily due to the continued int&gwnal expansion of Naglazyme and
commercialization of Kuvan in the United Statese Tilicrease in research and development expensprinaily due to increases in
development expenses for GALNS and other earlyegtaggrams. See below for additional informatidatesl to the primary net loss

fluctuations presented above, including detailswfoperating expense fluctuations.

Net Product Revenue and Gross Profit

The following table shows a comparison of net praidavenues for the three and six months periodse@dune 30, 2007 and 2008 (in

millions):
Three Months Ended Six Month Ended
June 30, June 30,

2007 2008 Change 2007 2008 Change
Naglazyme $20.¢ $35.1 $14.Z $39.2 $ 62.¢ $23.t
Kuvan — 12.C 12.C — 17.€ 17.¢
Aldurazyme — 13.4 134 — 37t 37t
Total Net Product Revent $20.¢ $60.5 $39.€ $39.2 $118.1 $78.t

Net product revenues for Naglazyme in the secordtguof 2008 were $35.1 million, of which $29.9liah was from customers based
outside of the U.S. The impact of foreign curreagghange rates on Naglazyme sales from customsesl lmutside of the U.S. was
approximately $2.1 million in the second quarteR008. Gross profit from Naglazyme in the secondrtgr of 2008 was approximately $28.3
million, representing gross margins of approximagd% as compared to $16.4 million in the secoratign of 2007, representing gross
margins of approximately 79%. The increase in gmaggin is attributable to both improved manufaiciyyields and the foreign currency

exchange benefits discussed above.

Net product revenues for Naglazyme in the firstrasbnths of 2008 were $62.8 million, of which $5gh8lion was from customers based
outside of the U.S. The impact of foreign curreagghange rates on Naglazyme sales from customsesl lmutside of the U.S. was
approximately $3.8 million in the first six montb§2008. Gross profit from Naglazyme in the first months of 2008 was approximately $&
million, representing gross margins of approxima8f% as compared to $30.6 million in the first gsignths of 2007, representing gross
margins of approximately 78%. The increase in gmaggin is attributable to both improved manufaiciyyields and the foreign currency

exchange benefits discussed above.
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Prior to the restructuring of BioMarin/Genzyme Lle@fective January 2008, we did not record Alduragyevenue and instead recorded
our share of the net profits from the joint ventuke a result of the restructuring of the joint ttee, we record a 39.5 to 50 percent royalty on
worldwide net product sales of Aldurazyme. In aiddit we recognize product transfer revenue whedywrbis shipped to Genzyme and all
obligations have been fulfilled. The amount of protdtransfer revenue will eventually be deducteanfroyalties earned when the product is
sold by Genzyme. Aldurazyme net revenues of $13llibmand $37.5 million for the second quarter dinsit six months of 2008 represent
$13.4 million and $29.8 million of royalty revenar net Aldurazyme sales by Genzyme, respectivatyaRy revenue from Genzyme is based
on 39.5 percent of net Aldurazyme sales by Genzyvheh totaled $38.7 million and $75.5 million fibre second quarter and first six months
of 2008, respectively. Incremental Aldurazyme medpict transfer revenue of $7.7 million for thesfisix months of 2008 reflects incremental
shipments of Aldurazyme to Genzyme to meet futueglpct demand. In January 2008, we transferrediegifinished goods on-hand to
Genzyme under the restructured terms of the BioM@enzyme LLC agreements, resulting in the recagnitf significant incremental
product transfer revenue during the first six merah2008. During the second quarter of 2008, regaecognized for royalty payments due
from Genzyme was reduced by $1.9 million of preslguecognized product transfer revenue. In therytto the extent that Genzyme
Aldurazyme inventory quantities on hand remain, fied expect that our total Aldurazyme revenues agfbroximate the 39.5% to 50%
royalties on net product sales by Genzyme. In ¢éltersd quarter and first six months of 2008, Aldynag gross profit was $11.9 million and
$25.1 million, representing a gross margin of 89%d &7%, respectively, which primarily reflects fhrefit earned on royalty revenue and net
product transfer revenue. Our Aldurazyme gross mangay fluctuate depending on the mix of royaétyenue, from which we earn higher
gross profit, and product transfer revenue, fronictvlive earn a lower gross profit.

We received marketing approval for Kuvan in the .Un®©ecember 2007 and began shipping productstinae month. Net product sales
for Kuvan in the second quarter and first six menth2008 were $12.0 million and $17.8 million,pestively, all of which were from
customers based in the U.S. Gross profit from Kuwmahe second quarter and first six months of 2088 approximately $10.6 million and
$15.7 million, respectively, representing grossgies of approximately 88% for each period, whictleds a royalty payment of 11%. In
accordance with our inventory accounting policy,lvegan capitalizing Kuvan inventory production saafter U.S. regulatory approval was
obtained in December 2007. As a result, all ofgtaduct sold in the first six months of 2008 hadresignificant cost basis. We expect that the
majority of Kuvan sales into 2009 will be previopsixpensed product and will have a minimal cosishd$e cost of goods for Kuvan for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2008 is palgipyalties paid to third parties based on Kunah sales.

Collaborative Agreement Revenues

Collaborative agreement revenues include both segavenue and contract research revenue undegmement with Merck Serono,
which was executed in May 2005. License revenuesadated to amortization of the $25.0 million uprit license payment received from
Merck Serono and contract research revenues atedeo shared development costs that are incbyrers, of which approximately 50% is
reimbursed by Merck Serono. As development spenaiini§uvan and 6R-BH4 for other indications increasedecreases, contract research
revenues will also change proportionately. Reimalblies revenues are expected to increase followiagdmpletion of Phase 2 clinical trials
each indication of 6R-BH4 if Merck Serono exercige®ption to co-develop the program. The relatests are included in research and
development expenses.

Collaborative agreement revenues in the secondeguand first six months of 2008 were $2.5 milleomd $5.0 million, respectively, and
includes the amortization of $1.5 million and $&Dlion, respectively, of the up-front license fiesxeived from Merck Serono and recognized
as revenue during the period, and $1.0 million $2@ million, respectively, of reimbursable Kuvaevdlopment costs incurred during the
period. Collaborative agreement revenues of $3lkomiand $7.7 million for the second quarter amdtfsix months of 2007, respectively,
includes the amortization of $1.8 million and $&8lion of the up-front license fee received frorar8no and recognized as revenue during the
period, respectively, and $1.7 million and $4.1lionl of reimbursable Kuvan development costs inediduring the period, respectively.
Reimbursable Kuvan development costs decreasedgiiineé second quarter and first six months of 2@fipared to the same periods in 2007
due primarily to reductions in Kuvan clinical triattivities subsequent to the FDA approval receimedecember 2007. Amortization of the up-
front license fee received from Merck Serono armmbgaized as revenue decreased during the secontgigaad first six months of 2008
compared to the same period in 2007 due primasith¢ changes in the amortization period.
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Royalty and License Revenues

In March 2006, we sublicensed our rights to thep@d product line. Royalty and license revenuesherthree and six months ended
June 30, 2007 include royalty revenues from Orapreduct sold by the sublicensee of $0.4 milliod &0.8 million, respectively, compared
the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 viftlded $1.2 million and $1.5 million, respectiveRoyalty and license revenues for the
second quarter and first six months of 2007 incla&&.0 million milestone payment related to the-pear anniversary of FDA approval of 1
marketing application for Orapred ODT.

Research and Devel opment Expense

Our research and development expense includesrpeisdacility and external costs associated withresearch and development of our
product candidates and products. These researctiesetbpment costs primarily include preclinicatlatinical studies, manufacturing of our
product candidates prior to regulatory approvadligyicontrol and assurance and other product dgveént expenses, such as regulatory costs

Research and development expenses increased byn#Ho6 and $4.1 million to $23.8 million and $4imillion for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2008, respectively. Resaartdevelopment expenses for the same periodin&6re $19.2 million and $37.3
million, respectively. The change in research aenetbpment expenses for the second quarter andifirsnonths of 2008 is primarily a result
of the following (in millions):

Three Months Endec Six Months Endec
June 30, June 30,
Research and development expenses for the peritstit007 $ 19.2 $ 37.5
Decreased Kuvan clinical trial and manufacturingts (1.6) (5.0
Increased (decreased)-BH4 development costs for endothe
dysfunction 0.3 (0.6)
Decreased PE-PAL development cos (1.7 (1.6)
Increased sto-based compensation expel 0.5 0.7
Increased Aldurazyme development expel 0.4 0.8
Increased GALNS development expen 3.C 4.1
Increase in research and development expense enedfly stag
programs 1.8 3.1
Non-allocated research and development expense andrethehange 1.3 2.6
Research and development expenses for the peritetler®0¢ $ 23.€ $ 41.4

The decrease in year-to-date 6R-BH4 developmerts toselated to decreases in the ongoing preedlirstudies of 6R-BH4 in other
indications, including endothelial dysfunction, atabts related to planning and conducting Phad@igal trials in peripheral arterial disease
and sickle cell disease. The decrease in PEG-PAg&ldement costs is related to decreases foclmesal studies and manufacturing costs.
increase in GALNS for Morquio disease developmest<is related to increases in pre-clinical staidied manufacturing costs. The decrease
in Kuvan clinical trial and manufacturing costpiimarily due to decreased clinical trial and mautiiring expenses now that Kuvan is
approved. However, we expect to continue incursiggificant Kuvan research and development costthinforeseeable future due to long-
term clinical activities related to post-approvedjulatory commitments. The increase in researctdamdlopment on other programs primarily
includes increases in facilities costs, generaassh costs and research and development perstieexpect research and development
expense to increase in future periods, primarilg assult of spending on our development programs.

26



Table of Contents

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

Our selling, general and administrative expenskiiies commercial and administrative personnel,m@ate facility and external costs
required to support our commercialized products @odiuct development programs. These selling, géaed administrative costs include:
corporate facility operating expenses and deprieciainarketing and sales operations in supportaxlhzyme, Kuvan and our product
candidates; human resources; finance, legal arbsupersonnel expenses; and other external cdgpoosts such as insurance, audit and
legal.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&7.9 million and $15.3 million, to $25.2 mitliand $48.9 million for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively.rgelfieneral and administrative expenses for theeg@riods in 2007 were $17.3 million and
$33.6 million, respectively. The components of thange for the second quarter and first six moott2008 primarily include the following (
millions):

Three Months Endec Six Months Endec
June 30, June 30,

Selling, general and administrative expense fopérgod ended 200 $ 17.5 $ 33.€
Increased Naglazyme sales and marketing expt 3.2 4.3
Increased sto-based compensation expel 0.8 1.€
Increased Kuvan commercialization exper 3.3 6.1
Net increase in corporate overhead and other adtrative cost: 0.5 3
Selling, general and administrative expense foptréod ended 200 $ 25.2 $ 48.¢

The commercialization costs of Naglazyme contintweglrow during the three and six months ended 30n2008. We also incurred
increased spending related to the Kuvan commezffiaits following the launch in December 2007. Tinerease in stock-based compensation
expense is the result of an increased number afrepbutstanding due to increased headcount aigharhaverage stock price on the related
grant date. The year-ate increase in corporate overhead and other &tnaitive costs is primarily related to increasesalaries and benef
due to a significant growth in headcount. We expgetitng, general and administrative expensesdrease in future periods as a result of the
international expansion of Naglazyme and the UnBtates commercialization activities for Kuvan.

Amortization of Acquired | ntangible Assets

Amortization of acquired intangible assets incluttescurrent amortization expense of the intangglsigets acquired in the Ascent
Pediatrics transaction in May 2004, including thrajed developed and core technology. The acquitadgible assets are being amortized
over approximately 3.5 years and the amortizatipease for the second quarter and first six moottmth 2007 and 2008 was $1.1 million
and $2.2 million, respectively. Following our extert purchase of the common stock of Ascent Pedsafirom Medicis in August 2009, the
underlying intellectual property will be transfedro Sciele. We expect that the annual amortizagiqense associated with the intangible
assets will be approximately $4.4 million in all2008 and $2.9 million through the end of the expeaiseful life in August 2009.

Equity in the Income (Loss) of BioMarin/Genzyme LLC

Equity in the income (loss) of BioMarin/Genzyme Lliri€ludes our 50% share of the joint venture’s meaor loss for the period.
Effective January 2008, we and Genzyme restructBiellarin/Genzyme LLC regarding the manufacturingirketing and sale of
Aldurazyme. Under the revised structure, the oparat responsibilities for us and Genzyme did nghidicantly change, as Genzyme will
continue to globally market and sell Aldurazyme arewill continue to manufacture Aldurazyme. Aslahuary 1, 2008, instead of sharing all
costs and profits equally through the 50/50 jomture, BioMarin/Genzyme LLC's operations will c@tgprimarily of certain research and
development activities and intellectual propert§t @dntinue to be managed in the joint venture whith costs shared equally by BioMarin and
Genzyme.

Equity in the loss of BioMarin/Genzyme LLC was $@nélion and $1.1 million for the three and six ntbs ended June 30, 2008,
respectively, compared to equity in the income ioMBarin/Genzyme LLC of $6.6 million and $12.7 mlii for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2007, respectively. The decrease in grofit BioMarin/Genzyme LLC in the second quarted &irst six months of 2008 was due to
the restructuring of the joint venture, whereby jthiat venture no longer records the sales andeeleommercial operations of Aldurazyme.
Under the restructured terms of the joint ventBieMarin/Genzyme LLC incurred $1.3 million and $2llion of primarily clinical trial costs
during the second quarter and first six monthsOff& respectively.

Equity in the income of the joint venture was $Glion and $12.7 million for the second quarteddinst six months of 2007, and was
primarily attributable to $29.1 million and $55.9llilon of net product sales in the respective pasioGross profit was $22.5 million and $43.1
million for the second quarter and first six monti2007, with gross margins approximating 77% dthbperiods. During the second quarter
and first six months of 2007, operating costs idellithe costs associated with the development @mdnercial support of Aldurazyme and
totaled $9.6 million and $18.0 million, respectizeDperating expenses in the second quarter astdsfic months of 2007, included $6.5 mill
and $12.3 million of selling, general and admirittre expenses associated with the commercialteftdrAldurazyme, respectively, and $3.0
million and $5.6 million of research and developtnexpenses, primarily clinical trial costs, respesy.
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I nterest Income

We invest our cash and short-term investments wregonent and other high credit quality securitiesrider to limit default and market
risk. Interest income decreased to $4.1 milliontf@ second quarter of 2008, from $6.9 milliontfoe same period in 2007 and decreased to
$9.8 million for the first six months of 2008, fra#10.6 million for the same period in 2007. Theuest interest yields during the second
quarter and first six months of 2008 were due teelomarket interest rates and was partially offseincreased levels of cash and investments.
We expect that interest income will decline in fetguarters in 2008 as compared to 2007 due taceedinterest yields.

Interest Expense

We incur interest expense on our convertible debtrest expense also includes imputed interestresgoon the discounted acquisition
obligation for the Ascent Pediatrics transactiorietest expense was $4.1 million and $8.2 millimmtiie second quarter and first six months of
2008, respectively, compared to $3.7 million andL$6illion for the respective periods in 2007, eg@nting an increase of $0.4 million and
$2.1 million, respectively. The increase in thstfsix months of 2008 is primarily due to the ARAI07 convertible debt issuance of
approximately $324.9 million of 1.875% Senior Sulinated Convertible Notes due in 2017.

Imputed interest expense totaled $1.1 million a2 $nillion for the second quarters and first sianhs of 2008, and $1.1 million and
$2.3 million for the second quarter and first signths of 2007, respectively.

Changes in Financial Position
June 30, 2008 Compared to December 31, 2007

From December 31, 2007 to June 30, 2008, our invericreased by approximately $29.4 million. Therease in inventory was
primarily attributable to the distribution of Aldazyme inventory from the joint venture and the tjziation of Kuvan inventory costs as a
result of the FDA approval in December 2007. Owoaints receivable increased by $35.2 million dued¢oeased Kuvan sales and receivables
from Genzyme for Aldurazyme product transfer anghtty revenues. In the first quarter of 2008, weereed distributions of $16.7 million of
cash and $26.8 million of inventory from BioMariré@zyme LLC as a result of the restructuring ofjtiet venture. Our net property, plant
and equipment increased by approximately $28.4anifrom December 31, 2007 to June 30, 2008, pilynas a result of the purchase of our
facility at 300 Bel Marin Keys, capital equipmemamprovements to our other facilities, partialf§set by depreciation expense during the
period. We expect net property, plant and equipreenbntinue to increase in future periods, duseieeral ongoing facility improvement
projects. Our total current liabilities increassdapproximately $2.0 million in the first six mostiof 2008 primarily due to build of accounts
payable and accrued liabilities.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and Cash Flow

As of June 30, 2008, our combined cash, cash elgnitgaand short-term investments totaled $575.lianjla decrease of $9.9 million
compared to $585.6 million at December 31, 2007%irguthe six months ended June 30, 2008, we firduoce operations primarily through
net product sales and available cash, cash equotga@d short-term investments and the relatedestténcome earned thereon.

The decrease in cash, cash equivalents, and gmortitvestments during the first six months of 20@& $9.9 million, which was $7.6
million less than the net decrease in cash, cagivaents, and short-term investments during trst ix months of 2007 of $17.5 million,
excluding net offering proceeds of $316.4 millidine primary items contributing to the decreaseehaash outflow in the first six months of
2008 were as follows (in millions):

Net decrease in cash and s-term investments for the first six months of 2( $(17.5)
Increased capital asset purche (25.5
Increased cash flows from BioMarin/Genzyme L 7.3
Increased proceeds from stock option exercisesrenBSPF 18.C
Net decreased operating spend and ¢ 7.8
Net decrease in cash and s-term investments for the first six months of 2( $ (9.9

The decreased net operating spend includes inar@asash receipts from net revenues offset byeemes in cash payments made for
operating activities, such as research and devedopand sales and marketing efforts, as discusseBesults of Operatiorisabove.
Increased capital asset purchases include the gmedf our facility at 300 Bel Marin Keys Drivecheased cash flows from
BioMarin/Genzyme LLC include the cash distributi@sulting from the restructure of the joint ventofe$16.7 million. Net payments for
working capital in the first half of 2008 includeaeased inventory build of $3.1 million, which kxded the inventory distribution from the
joint venture, and decreased accounts payable@mded liabilities build of $6.0 millior
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Pursuant to our settlement of a dispute with MaditiJanuary 2005, Medicis made available to usnaertible note of up to $25.0
million beginning July 1, 2005 based on certaimi®and conditions and provided that we do not eézpee a change of control. Money
advanced under the convertible note is converiititeour common stock, at Medicis’ option, accogiin the terms of the convertible note. As
of June 30, 2008, we have not made any draws ondfee We do not anticipate that we will draw fuffigsn this note.

Funding Commitments

We expect to fund our operations with our net potdavenues from Naglazyme, Aldurazyme and Kuvashgcash equivalents and
short-term investments supplemented by proceeds équity or debt financings, loans or collaboratiggeements with corporate partners, to
the extent necessary. We expect that our curresfit, cash equivalents and short-term investmentsneiét our operating and capital
requirements for the foreseeable future based oouwent long-term business plans and assumirtgmbare able to achieve our long-term
goals. This expectation could also change deperahrtgow much we elect to spend on our developmegrams and for potential licenses
acquisitions of complementary technologies, prosiacid companies.

Our investment in our product development progriassa major impact on our operating performance.ré€search and development
expenses for the three and six months ended Jurg#98®@ and 2008 and for the period since inceffitarch 1997) include the following (in
millions):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended Since
June 30, June 30, Program
2007 2008 2007 2008 Inception
GALNS $ 02 $ 32 $ 04 $ 46 8.4
6R-BH4 for other indications, including endothelialsfiynction 3.6 4.4 7.3 7.9 35.2
PEC-PAL 4.2 3.C 7.0 B8 25k
Not allocated to specific major current developnstage project 4.5 8.2 8.4 14.4 167.2
Total $ 12 $ 18£8 $ 231 $ 322 $236.

We cannot estimate the cost to complete any opmatuct development programs. Additionally, exaeptlisclosed under——Overview
" above, we cannot estimate the time to compleyecdiour product development programs or when weeekto receive net cash inflows from
any of our product development programs. Pleasé Résk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10fdf the year ended December 31,
2007, for a discussion of the reasons that we laabla to estimate such information, and in parécthe following risk factors included in our
Form 10-K “—If we fail to maintain regulatory approval to cormmially market or sell our drugs, or if approval delayed, we will be unable
to generate revenue from the sale of these prodaatspotential for generating positive cash flowl e diminished, and the capital necessary
to fund our operations will be increased;” “—To @it regulatory approval to market our products, @ieical studies and costly and lengthy
preclinical and clinical trials are required and ¢hresults of the studies and trials are highly utaia;” “—If we are unable to successfully
develop manufacturing processes for our drug présite produce sufficient quantities and at accelgaosts, we may be unable to meet
demand for our products and lose potential revehiage reduced margins or be forced to terminatecg@am;” “—If we fail to compete
successfully with respect to product sales, we lbeaynable to generate sufficient sales to recouvereapenses related to the development of a
product program or to justify continued marketinfgagoroduct and our revenue could be adverselyctdtt” and“—If we do not achieve our
projected development goals in the timeframes vm@amce and expect, the commercialization of oudpeots may be delayed and 1
credibility of our management may be adverselycadfi and, as a result, our stock price may decline.

We may elect to increase our spending above ouwerulong-term plans and may be unable to achiewvdomg-term goals. This could
increase our capital requirements, including: cassociated with the commercialization of our piduadditional clinical trials and the
manufacturing of Naglazyme, Aldurazyme and Kuvaegpnical studies and clinical trials for our otlproduct candidates; potential licenses
and other acquisitions of complementary technolgieoducts and companies; general corporate pesppayment of the amounts due with
respect to the Ascent Pediatrics transaction; amriting capital.

Our future capital requirements will depend on méagtors, including, but not limited to:
. our ability to successfully market and sell Naglaeyand Kuvan
. Genzym/'s ability to successfully market and sell Aldurazy
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. the progress, timing, scope and results of ourlipieal studies and clinical trial:

. the time and cost necessary to obtain regulatopycajals and the costs of p-marketing studies which may be required
regulatory authorities

. the time and cost necessary to develop commereialifacturing processes, including quality systenusta build or acquir
manufacturing capabilitie:

. the time and cost necessary to respond to techicalagnd market developmen

. any changes made to or new developments in outirexisollaborative, licensing and other commeroidtionships or any new
collaborative, licensing and other commercial ietahips that we may establish; ¢

. whether our convertible debt is converted to comistock in the future

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangemieatste currently material or reasonably likelyoeomaterial to our financial position
or results of operations.

Borrowings and Contractual Obligations

In April 2007, we sold approximately $324.9 millioh Senior Subordinated Convertible Notes due 20he. debt was issued at face
value and bears interest at the rate of 1.875%umeum, payable semi-annually in cash. The deldnsertible, at the option of the holder, at
any time prior to maturity, into shares of our coomstock at a conversion price of approximately.$8@er share, subject to adjustment in
certain circumstances. There is a no call provigicfuded and we are unable to unilaterally redéeerdebt prior to maturity in 2017. We also
must repay the debt if there is a qualifying chaimgeontrol or termination of trading of our commstock. In March 2006, we sold
approximately $172.5 million of Senior Subordinat@anvertible Notes due 2013. The debt was issuétatvalue and bears interest at the
rate of 2.5% per annum, payable semi-annually énc@here is a no call provision included and weewarable to unilaterally redeem the debt
prior to maturity in 2013. The debt is convertitd¢ the option of the holder, at any time priomntaturity, into shares of our common stock at a
conversion price of approximately $16.58 per shsubject to adjustment in certain circumstancesvéi@r, we must repay the debt prior to
maturity if there is a qualifying change in contosltermination of trading of our common stock. @487.2 million of convertible debt will
impact our liquidity due to the semi-annual cagkrnest payments and the scheduled repayments détite

As a result of the Ascent Pediatrics transactiam ewpect to pay Medicis $76.6 million through 208@which $3.0 million is payable
during the remainder of 2008. At our option, we redact to pay Medicis $8.6 million of the amountedn 2009 through the issuance of our
common stock.

We have contractual and commercial obligations uode debt, operating leases and other obligatielsged to research and
development activities, purchase commitments, §esrand sales royalties with annual minimums. mé&tion about these obligations as of
June 30, 2008 is presented below (in thousands).

Payments Due by Period

Remainder
2014 and
of 2008 2009 20102011 2012-2013 Thereafter Total
Medicis obligations $ 3,00 $7360C $ — $ — $ — $ 76,60(
Convertible debt and related inter 5,20z 10,40¢ 20,80¢ 191,070 346,19! 573,68t
Operating lease 1,462 2,93¢ 5,82( 4,78% 40 15,04:
Research and development and purchase commiti 18,81¢ 5,552 2,72 533 54C 28,16¢
Total $28,48. $92,49: $29,35! $196,39¢ $346,77! $693,49!

We are also subject to contingent payments retatedrious development activities totaling $113 i#tiom, which are due upon
achievement of certain regulatory and licensingstdnes, and if they occur before certain dat#sariuture.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Marke Risk

Other than those discussed below, our market eslisne 30, 2008 have not changed significantiyfiitose discussed in Item 7A of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwam31, 2007.

Foreign Currency Hedging Instrumer

We transact business in various foreign currengiesarily in certain European countries. Accordjngve are subject to exposure from
movements in foreign currency exchange rates, pilyn@lated to Euro and British Pound revenue freaies of our products in Europe. Our
operating expenses in the UK and other Europeantigsuare in British Pounds and Euros, respectiigbgh serve to mitigate a portion of the
exposure related to the above-mentioned revenbetinmarkets.

We hedge a portion of our net position in assetsliabilities denominated in Euros and British Pdsiusing primarily forward contracts.
We also hedge a percentage of our forecasted attenal revenue with forward contracts. Our hedgioticy is designed to reduce the impact
of foreign currency exchange rate movements.

In the second quarter of 2008, we commenced hedgpation of our forecasted Eubased revenue to help mitigate short term expe
to fluctuations of the currency by entering foreexthange forward rate contracts. These contracts maturities of less than 12 months. Our
hedging programs are expected to reduce, but demiely eliminate, the short-term impact of caeg exchange rate movements in operating
expenses. As of June 30, 2008, we had foreign meyrorward contracts to sell approximately $21liomil in Euros. As of June 30, 2008, our
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts addir value of $0.5 million, which is included ather current liabilities.

We do not use derivative financial instrumentsdpeculative trading purposes, nor do we hedgedoreiirrency exposure in a manner
that entirely offsets the effects of changes irifgm exchange rates. The counterparty to theseaforaontracts is a creditworthy multinational
commercial bank; therefore, the risk of counterpadnperformance is not considered to be material.

We currently do not use financial instruments tddeelocal currency operating expenses in Europse#nl, we believe that a natural
hedge exists, in that local currency revenue suliatly offsets the local currency operating expendNe regularly review our hedging
program and may, as part of this review, make céang the program.

Based on our overall currency rate exposures a& 30n2008, we expect that a nézmm 10% fluctuation of the U.S. dollar could reésn
the potential change in the fair value of our fgrecurrency sensitive assets and investments byxippately $1.9 million. We expect to enter
into new transactions based in foreign currendias ¢ould be impacted by changes in exchange rates.
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ltem 4. Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was carried out, under the supermisiband with the participation of our managemeantluding our Chief Executive
Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, of the eftiveness of our disclosure controls and proced{@&® defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15
(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 nasnaled) as of the end of the period covered byrdpiert.

Based on the evaluation, our Chief Executive Offaned our Chief Financial Officer have concludeat thur disclosure controls are
effective to ensure that the information requiredé¢ disclosed by us in this Form 10-Q was recqrpgextessed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s suéad instructions for Form 10-Q. There was no ghan our internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the period covengdhiis Form 10-Q that has materially affected,sordasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

In April 2008, the U.S. Environmental Protectionekgy (EPA) notified us that it intends to file ain@nistrative complaint against us
certain violations of the Clean Water Act. Spedifiig, over the last several years, on numerousurtsts, the pH level of the waste water
discharged into the City of Novato sanitary sewaswutside of the levels specified in our wasteemdischarge permit. These excursions v
all very short in duration and small in quantityn @anuary 31, 2008, we completed constructionpgi aeutralization system to avoid future
excursions. In July 2008, we entered into a teveagettlement with the EPA, which included, amotigeothings, the payment of a penalty of
approximately $120,000.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

The risk factors previously disclosed in Part &nitlA of our Form 10-K for fiscal year ended Decembl, 2007 and Part Il, Item 1A of
our Form 10Q for the quarter ended March 31, 200&hemained substantially unchanged.

32



Table of Contents

ltem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds.
None.

ltem 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities
None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
The annual meeting of our stockholders was hellflap 22, 2008, at which the following actions weaken:
a) The following directors were elected to serve uthtd next annual meeting and until their success@®lected

Director Elected Vote For Withheld

Jear-Jacques Bienairr 85,373,78 231,27
Michael Grey 56,250,02 29,355,03
Elaine J. Heron, Ph.L 84,374,70 1,230,35:
Joseph Klein, Il 84,545,23 1,059,82
Pierre Lapalme 85,373,73 231,32
V. Bryan Lawlis, Ph.D 85,372,92 232,13:
Alan J. Lewis, Ph.D 85,372,77 232,28
Richard A. Meiel 85,373,27 231,78(

b) The selection of KPMG LLP as independent registgndalic accounting firm for the year ending DecenibE 2008 was ratified |
a vote of 85,520,081 shares in favor; 75,195 shegasist; and 9,781 abstain

Item 5. Other Information.
None.

ltem 6. Exhibits.

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRules 13-14(a)/15¢-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad.
31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuat Rules 13-14(a)/15+-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrated.

32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chiginancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section(,3%s adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarban@sdey Act of 2002. This Certification accompanibistreport and shall not, except to the extentireq
by the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed for purpose§18 of The Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amé)

* Filed herewitr
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgéa Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdRBport to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.

Dated: August 6, 200 By /s/ JEFFREY H. COOPE
Jeffrey H. Cooper,
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Offic
(On behalf of the registrant and as principal firiahofficer)
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Exhibit Index

31.1*  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRules 13-14(a)/15«14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad.
31.2*  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuatRules 13-14(a)/15+-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad.

32.1*  Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chiginancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@,3&s adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Testification accompanies this report and shat) arcept to the extent required
by the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed for purpose§18 of The Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as a®e)

* Filed herewitr
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Jean-Jacques Bienaimé, Chief Executive Officertify that:
1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Forr10f BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over financigloming, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantlis report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significéain the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin
Date: August 6, 200

Is/ JEAN-JACQUES BIENAIME
Jear-Jacques Bienairr
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Jeffrey H. Cooper, Chief Financial Officer, dBrtthat:
1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Forr10f BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over financigloming, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantlis report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significéain the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin
Date: August 6, 200

/s/ JEFFREY H. COOPE
Jeffrey H. Coope
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Offic




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on FormQ@f BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. (the “Companyy the quarter ended June 30, 2008,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseiothe date hereof (the “Report”), we, Jean-Jasdienaimé, as Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, and Jeffrey H. Cooper, as Chiedi@ial Officer of the Company, hereby certify, past to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted
pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20#;

(1) the Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgwAct of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Is/ JEAN-JACQUES BIENAIME

Jear-Jacques Bienairr
Chief Executive Office

August 6, 2008

/s/ JEFFREY H. COOPE
Jeffrey H. Coope
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Offic

August 6, 200¢



